
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF BAY CITY 

Wednesday, July 19, 2023 at 5:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS | 1901 5th Street 

Vision Statement 

Through a united and collaborative effort, we seek to grow the City of Bay City with a diverse culture that 
is proud to call Bay City home. We envision a thriving family-centered community where citizens are 

involved in the future development of our city. We desire our citizens to work, play, worship and shop in 
the community in which we live. Visitors are welcomed and encouraged to enjoy the friendly environment 

and amenities the citizens and business owners have created together. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Meeting minutes of March 7, 2023 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Variance ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a variance to the Municipal Code 
of Ordiances, Sec. 54-29 through 54-83, Sec. 54-110 through 54-201, Sec. 54-203, 
Sec. 54-240 through 54-259 at East Heights S/D, Block 8, Lot 7 & 8 (2600 
Sycamore). Malanie Patterson/Herbert Hawkins Jr. 

3. Review, discuss, and/or      approve preliminary and/or final plat of D.P. Moore’s 
First Addition      commercial development of 1.033 acres out of the P.T. Ruben 
Stone Survey,      Abstract No. 92, located at 1221 Avenue F, Dollar General.  

4. Review of minor plats      recently reviewed and approved by Public 
Works:  Chick-fil-A (5512 7th St), Speedy Stop parking lot expansion (3107 7th 
St), SRMA      Nichols (NW corner of Hamman & Nichols), SRMA 7th (NW      
corner of 12th St & Hwy 35). 

5. Update of subdivisions      currently in development process:  TIRZ #1A – Valor 
Park Sec. 1; TIRZ      #2 – Sandhill LLC (Bay City 35, LLC) Sec. 1; TIRZ #3 – 
Meadow Oaks Phase      2; TIRZ #4 – Russell Ranch. 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

Page 1



 
 
Agenda Planning Commission July 19, 2023 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

State Law prohibits any deliberation of or decisions regarding items presented in public 
comments. City Council may only make a statement of specific factual information given in 
response to the inquiry; recite an existing policy; or request staff places the item on an agenda 
for a subsequent meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE 

This is to certify that the above notice of a Special Called Meeting was posted on the front window 
of the City Hall of the City of Bay City, Texas on Friday, July 14, 2023 before 5:00 p.m. Any 
questions concerning the above items, please contact Mayor Robert K. Nelson at (979) 245-
2137. 

AGENDA NOTICES: 

Bay City Planning Commission: 

The Bay City Planning Commission serves as an advisory body to City Council and the Mayor. Therefore, 
although the Board does not fall under the purview of the Texas Open Meetings Act, its meetings shall 
be open to members of the public. 

Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: 

It is anticipated that members of other city board, commissions and/or committees may attend the 
meeting in numbers that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or 
committees. Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a 
meeting of the other boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in 
attendance. The members of the boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions 
on the same items listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such 
in attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that board, 
commission or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

The facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces available. Request for 
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the 
City Secretary's Office at 979-245-5311 or email, jthompson@cityofbaycity.org for further information. 

 

______________________________ 

Jeanna Thompson 

City Secretary  

Page 2



Minutes Planning Commission  March 07, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES  MARCH 7, 2023 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

Planning Commission Meeting 5:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Jessica Russell at 5:12 pm. 

PRESENT 
Commissioner Erik Frankson 
Commissioner Joshua Fortenberry 
Chairperson Jessica Russell 
Commissioner Marion Garcia 
 
ABSENT 
Commissioner Zeinab Ghais 
Commissioner Raihan Khondker 
Commissioner Carolyn Barclay 

Also in attendance were Shawna Burkhart, City Manager, Councilwoman Becca Sitz, Krystal 
Mason, Planning Manager, Bruce Grover, Developer, John Peden, Developer, Janet Baccus, 
Quiddity Engineering, Bill Frohms, resident, and Billy Gray, resident. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Meeting minutes of December 15, 2022 

Motion made by Commissioner Fortenberry to approve the minutes of December 15, 
2022, Seconded by Commissioner Frankson. Voting Yea: Commissioner Frankson, 
Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Garcia. Motion 
carried. 

2. Meeting minutes of February 9, 2023 

Page 3

ITEM #1.



Minutes Planning Commission  March 07, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

Motion made by Commissioner Garcia to approve the minutes of February 9, 2023, 
Seconded by Commissioner Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Frankson, 
Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Garcia. Motion 
carried. 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

3. Discussion ~ Discuss results of poll and input of emergency services regarding 
the development of Meadow Oaks subdivision. 

Janet Baccus reviewed their traffic study. John Peden stated that he was frustrated 
that they only surveyed Marguerite residents and not Pearl Street residents. 
Chairperson Russell replied that the reason was a prior approval of exit by Planning 
Commission. Bill Frohms presented a traffic study from 2017 that the residents paid for 
that projected a traffic impact up 277%. Bruce Grover asked if they were doing 
anything against code if only on exit. Shawna Burkhart and Krystal Mason both replied 
that it is in Chapter 98 that anything over 5 acres must have two exits. 

Kyrstal Mason presented the results of the poll; 14 pieces of correspondence returned 
and 2 phone calls. Only 1 voted for Marguerite Street. 

4. Plat ~ Review and consider Meadow Oaks preliminary plat with secondary 
access road on Marguerite instead of Pearl St. (Bruce Grover) 

Motion made by Commissioner Fortenberry to approve the preliminary plat with 
changes to include Marguerite Street and Pearl Street entrances, Seconded by 
Commissioner Garcia. Voting Yea: Commissioner Frankson, Commissioner 
Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

Commission recommends that Chapter 98 of the City Code of Ordinances specify that the two 
entrances must be on separate roads. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Commissioner Frankson to adjourn, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Frankson, Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson 
Russell, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 5:45 pm. 

. 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________, 20____. 

 

   

 JESSICA RUSSELL, CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 4

ITEM #1.



Page 5

ITEM #2.



Page 6

ITEM #2.



Page 7

ITEM #2.



Page 8

ITEM #2.



Page 9

ITEM #2.



Page 10

ITEM #2.



Page 11

ITEM #2.



Page 12

ITEM #2.



Page 13

ITEM #2.



Page 14

ITEM #2.



Page 15

ITEM #2.



Page 16

ITEM #2.



Page 17

ITEM #2.



Page 18

ITEM #2.



Page 19

ITEM #2.



Page 20

ITEM #2.



Minutes Planning Commission  September 15, 2022 

 
Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES • JULY 28, 2022 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

Planning Commission Meeting 5:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

Bay City is committed to developing and enhancing the long-term prosperity,  
sustainability, and health of the community. 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Jessica Russell at 5:02 pm. 

PRESENT 
Commissioner Joshua Fortenberry 
Chairperson Jessica Russell 
Commissioner Zeinab Ghais 
Commissioner Marion Garcia 
 
ABSENT 
Commissioner Erik Frankson 
Commissioner Raihan Khondker 
Commissioner Carolyn Barclay 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve the agenda, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner 
Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Meeting Minutes of July 28, 2022 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve the minutes, Seconded by 
Commissioner Fortenberry. 

Page 21

ITEM #2.



Minutes Planning Commission  September 15, 2022 

 
Bay City  Page 2 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Ghais, 
Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Variance ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a variance to the Municipal Code 
of Ordiances, Sec. 54-29 through 54-83, Sec. 54-110 through 54-201, Sec. 54-203, 
Sec. 54-240 through 54-259 at East Heights S/D, Block 8, Lot 7 & 8 (2600 
Sycamore). Malanie Patterson/Herbert Hawkins Jr. 

Krystal Mason, City Planning Manager, gave a summary of the background of the 
property stating the Code Enforcement had had a case of three substandard mobile 
homes in 2020 that were demolished and the new owner had needed to put new 
mobile homes on the property within 180 days to maintain the "Non-Conforming" 
Mobile Home Park. Ms. Patterson was able to get one mobile home on the property 
but due to delays because of permitting and lack of permitting has not been able to get 
the others on the property yet. The current placed home is in the Utility Easement and 
needs to be moved. Ms. Mason also stated that the proposed plats to add one or two 
more trailers will not provide the requires set backs and spacing.  

Mr. Herbert Hawkins Jr., Attorney representing Ms. Patterson, and Shawna Burkhart, 
City Manager, both discussed what Texas Municipal League advised. Mr. Hawkins 
stated that the City gives setback variances all the time and that neighborhood is 
having a housing shortage and this is a financial hardship for Ms. Patterson. 

Chairman Russell stated that she is concerned for the residents safety in regards to a 
fire, but believes allowing additional time for Ms. Patterson to get the homes on the 
property. 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to extend the time to an additional 180 days, not 
to remove the status and table the replat with setback and spacing variances, 
Seconded by Commissioner Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, 
Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

3. Review, discuss, and/or approve preliminary or final plat of Bay City 35, LLC 
Sec. 1 development being a subdivision of 31.01 acres out of the John Duncan 
Survey No. 3, A-150 in Bay City, Matagorda County, Texas which is located north 
of Hwy 35 (7th St), south of Old Van Vleck Rd, and east of McCrosky Rd.   

Chairman Russell advised the commission to approve as the final plat.  

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve as the final plat of Bay City 35, LLC 
Sec. 1 development being a subdivision of 31.01 acres out of the John Duncan Survey 
No. 3, A-150 in Bay City contingent on Public Works approval. Seconded by 
Commissioner Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson 

Page 22

ITEM #2.



Minutes Planning Commission  September 15, 2022 

 
Bay City  Page 3 

Russell, Commissioner Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

4. Variance ~ Discuss, consider and/or approve a variance to the City of Bay City 
Code of Ordinance, Sec. 98-100 "Building Lines" at the Bay City Original 
Townsight, Block 82, Lots 1-3 and 10-12.  UPRR (G-W Engr) 

Krystal Mason, City Planning Manager, stated that the property was owned by Union 
Pacific and structures have been there for about 50 years. 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve the variance to building lines at the 
Bay City Original Townsite, Block 82, Lots 1-3 and 10-12, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, 
Commissioner Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

Chairman Russell commended Public Works and their time spent. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

State Law prohibits any deliberation of or decisions regarding items presented in public 
comments. City Council may only make a statement of specific factual information given in 
response to the inquiry; recite an existing policy; or request staff places the item on an agenda 
for a subsequent meeting. 

There were no public comments. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to adjourn, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner 
Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 5:55 pm. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________, 20____. 

 
   
 

JESSICA RUSSELL 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 23

ITEM #2.



Page 24

ITEM #3.



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 13, 2023 

 

Planning Commission 

City of Bay City 

1901 5th Street 

Bay City, TX  77414 

 

RE: Final Plat Approval for Dollar General 

Located at 1221 Ave F, Bay City, TX 77414 

  

Dear Planning Commission Chairman, 

 

Public Works is submitting the re-plat for Dollar General D.P. Moore’s First Addition for consideration 

and/or approval to the Planning Commission at their meeting on July 19, 2023.    

 

The 1.033-acre property is located on the northeast corner of Ave F (SH 60) and Adell St. and consists of 

six (6) individually platted lots: one (1), two (2), three (3), ten (10), eleven (11), and twelve (12) in block 

two (2) of D.P. Moore’s First Addition.  The property is not located within the floodplain.  The owner of 

the property is SAL Holdings, LLC.  The purpose of the plat is to consolidate the six (6) lots to one (1).  

The existing structure on the property will be demolished to make way for new commercial construction of 

a retail store.  The property fronts Ave F (SH60) and Adell St.  Drainage plans have been submitted to the 

Matagorda County Drainage District No. 1 but have not been approved as of the draft of this memorandum.   

 

Plat approval involves three stages as required by Part II – Code of Ordinance, Chapter 98 – Subdivisions, 

Article II. Platting Procedures, etc.: 

(1) Departmental review by City Public Works and Gas Company;  

(2) Completeness Review by the Director of Public Works; and  

(3) Final Approval by City Planning Commission.   

Departmental review and the Completeness Review have been completed.  This report is a summary of the 

completeness review and is prepared for the consideration of the third stage in the process, Final Approval.  

The final plat complies with the following as specified in Section 98-40 (c): 

(1) Plat is on 18x24 with an appropriate scale. 

(2) Title and other drawing details required by this item are shown.  

(3) No new easements are being dedicated. 

(4) All data necessary to reproduce the plat on the ground is shown. 

(5) Certificate of ownership is shown on the plat 

(6) Certificate of approval for the Mayor and City Secretary is on the face of the plat  

(7) Title report and tax certificates have been provided. 

Page 25

ITEM #3.



 

2 

 

(8) No covenants or restrictions have been removed by the replat. 

(9) The appropriate note regarding the flood zone is on the plat. 

(10) Electronic files have been submitted. 

 

Public Works has examined the plat and it conforms to all applicable criteria and standards.  The final filing 

fee, as prescribed in Section 98-42, has been collected. 

 

Approval of this Final Plat is recommended and a Certificate of Completeness is attached.  

 

Report Prepared By:  Krystal Mason, Assistant Director of Public Works 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Shawna Burkhart 

City Manager 

Interim Director of Public Works 

City of Bay City 

 

cc: Jeanna Thompson, City Secretary 

 File 

 

 

 

Page 26

ITEM #3.


	Top
	ITEM #1.	Planning Meeting 3/7/23
	Planning Commission Minutes 230307 Draft

	ITEM #2.	Copy of Mobile Home Park 2600 Sycamore
	2600 Sycamore Non Conforming Trailer Park
	Planning Commission Minutes 220915 Draft

	ITEM #3.	Dollar General
	T23-044 RE-T23-043 REPLAT OF DP MOORES ADDITION_05-31-2023
	Letter of Completeness - prelim - Dollar General - 1221 Ave F

	ITEM #4.	Chick-fil-A and Speedy Stop
	ITEM #5.	Project Updates
	Bottom

